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          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: I am Maria Baez, I

          3  am the Chair of State and Federal Legislation.

          4                 Today we will be considering two Home

          5  Rule Messages. The first is a preconsidered SLR on

          6  an amended state bill that was heard by this

          7  Committee on April 24th.

          8                 This is the bill that will provide

          9  three-quarters disability to certain peace officers,

         10  such as school safety officers and HHC guards. This

         11  legislation will also create presumption that if the

         12  officers contracted HIV after coming into contact

         13  with the infected person, or TB or Hepatitis, that

         14  they contracted the illness while on the job.

         15                 This bill has been amended to address

         16  the Governor's concern that this presumption not be

         17  made retroactive.

         18                 The second Home Rule Message is on

         19  the Mayor's Message for a bill that would provide

         20  accidental death benefits and health coverage to the

         21  domestic partner of a firefighter who was killed on

         22  the line of duty on August 28th of last year.

         23                 I support this legislation and will

         24  urge my colleagues to vote yes on this at the

         25  conclusion of this hearing. However, while I am glad

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  to be giving benefits to one domestic partner, I am

          3  troubled by the fact that we are not extending these

          4  benefits to all domestic partners.

          5                 I have asked my counsel, Jim Caras,

          6  to begin work on a bill that would extend similar

          7  pension benefits to domestic partners of members of

          8  City pension funds and ask my colleagues and the

          9  Administration to work with us to secure passage of

         10  such a bill in Albany.

         11                 Because we have already heard from

         12  interested parties on the first SLR, I will ask the

         13  Administration to come up and address us on the

         14  Mayor's message relating to the domestic partner

         15  benefits.

         16                 I would also at this time like to

         17  introduce my colleagues from left to right. Council

         18  Member Golden, Council Member Addabbo, Council

         19  Member Sears, Council Member Quinn, my counsel Jim

         20  Caras, and Council Member Lopez.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Could you please

         22  identify yourself for the record?

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: My name is James

         25  F. Hanley -- excuse me, H-a-n-l-e-y. I am the
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          2  Commissioner of Labor Relations for the City.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  SILVERBLATT: I am Pamela Silverblatt,

          5  S-i-l-v-e-r-b-l-a-t-t, First Deputy Commissioner of

          6  Labor Relations for the City.

          7                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: We're here to

          8  testify in support of the bill for domestic

          9  partners, bill for domestic partner of Michael

         10  Garumba. He was a firefighter that died of a heart

         11  attack on August of last year on Staten Island. His

         12  domestic partner and he had a child, and she was

         13  pregnant with another child who was just recently

         14  born.

         15                 We believe it's the right thing to

         16  do, and the bill itself has already been supported

         17  by everyone, and we in the Administration support

         18  the bill as well.

         19                 I have nothing further on it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: While I'm extremely

         21  supportive of the Garumba bill, once again we have

         22  some concerns regarding extending these benefits to

         23  all domestic partners.

         24                 What is the Administration's position

         25  concerning supporting state legislation, extending
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          2  accidental death benefits to all domestic partners

          3  of the Police and Fire Department?

          4                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: It's clearly a

          5  larger issue and somewhat complicated, but we'll be

          6  more than happy to take a look at it.

          7                 We, within the City have supported,

          8  and we in fact did negotiate one of the first

          9  domestic partner bills for health insurance and

         10  welfare funds with the unions some time ago. We'll

         11  be happy to take a look at this one as well. But the

         12  unions usually want to be heard on it as well and

         13  would probably have to be discussed with in the

         14  first instance, but we would be more than willing to

         15  take a look at it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: So, would you say

         17  there would be a problem with extending -- you're

         18  saying there's going to be a problem extending these

         19  benefits to current employees who voluntarily enter

         20  into a domestic partner relationship at some point

         21  in the future?

         22                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: I'm saying it's

         23  something we'll take a look at.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Okay.

         25                 Colleagues?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Council Member

          4  Quinn.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You know, I

          6  appreciate very, very much that you want to check

          7  with the union. So, the Chair didn't ask you what

          8  you believe the union's perspective on this would

          9  be.

         10                 I guess I don't understand at any

         11  level the complexity of it, aside from that it is a

         12  state matter, and we recognize that there would be

         13  state action that would have to be taken, and,

         14  obviously, it's a lot more likely to be taken if the

         15  Mayor would go to Albany with us.

         16                 So, given that the City has taken its

         17  position, you know, legislatively for domestic

         18  partnership benefits, and that you're now coming

         19  forward and wanting to get the death benefits

         20  addressed for this one particular domestic partner,

         21  which we all support, what is the complexity? Why is

         22  it something you need to look at? Why don't you

         23  know?

         24                 I mean, why can't you give us an

         25  answer right now?
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          2                 I don't find that you need to look at

          3  at all acceptable or at all calming, or gives me no

          4  sense of confidence that you're actually going to

          5  partner, no pun intended, with us in Albany on this.

          6  Why do you have to look at it? Why don't you know?

          7  Why is it complicated? How is it complicated?

          8                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Well, I've been

          9  involved in these issues and negotiating these

         10  contracts with the unions now for 30 years, and I

         11  know enough that when you get involved in pension

         12  matters, they can be much more complicated than you

         13  thought in the first instance.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, let me

         15  ask the question a different way then.

         16                 Do you believe, as the Chief Labor

         17  Officer for the City of New York, and Michael

         18  Bloomberg's Administration, do you believe that

         19  domestic partners, regardless of their sexual

         20  orientation, and in this case the domestic partner

         21  in question happens to be, you know, a woman who was

         22  domestically partnered with a man, but do you

         23  believe that domestic partners, regardless of their

         24  sexual orientation, should get the same benefits as

         25  married City workers?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: There are many

          3  concerns that have to be taken in consideration.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You know,

          5  pretty much it's a yes or a no. Do you believe, as

          6  the Chief Labor Officer, that domestic partners of

          7  City workers should get the same benefits?

          8                 Obviously there are things that have

          9  to be worked out, it's a state issue. I'm not asking

         10  that. I'm asking you, does the Administration have a

         11  position that domestic partners should have the same

         12  benefits as married spouses?

         13                 If you don't, then there's no reason

         14  that you should be sitting at that table, and, in

         15  fact, you're being hypocritical in bringing us the

         16  Garumba bill.

         17                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Well, certainly

         18  --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, yes or no,

         20  do you or don't you? Does the Administration believe

         21  that or not?

         22                 And you have a right not to, but I

         23  really want to know whether you do or you don't.

         24                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: It's not a yes

         25  or a no answer.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: It is actually.

          3                 Does the Administration --

          4                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: In your

          5  perspective it may be, but there's costs that are

          6  associated with it that can get very expensive

          7  indeed. One has to take into consideration the cost.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So you support

          9  equal --

         10                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Once before --

         11  if you'll let me finish I'll be happy to --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, but you

         13  support equal benefits if they're cheap.

         14                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: I will continue.

         15  Once before there was a view that domestic partners

         16  for health insurance and welfare funds would be

         17  terribly expensive. We figured out a way of getting

         18  that done with the union, with the MLC.

         19                 If there is a cost associated with it

         20  here, maybe we'll be able to figure out that same

         21  way of doing it.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I mean, I think

         23  the cost you're talking about is something like

         24  $14,000 a year. If you look at the number of

         25  domestic partners who are registered in the City of
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          2  New York, it's not that many.

          3                 If you cross referenced how many were

          4  in law enforcement, I would be shocked if we went

          5  into double digits. How much could it possibly --

          6  and God willing, none of them will die in a year,

          7  but even, you know, how much could it actually cost?

          8                 I mean, what's the cost figure? I

          9  don't want to agree that it's a cost issue, and I'm

         10  offended that it's even being categorized as a cost

         11  issue, quite frankly, because it's an equal benefits

         12  and equal treatment issue, and we should be engaged

         13  in a conversation about tightening a loophole, not

         14  re-engaging in an offensive conversation about the

         15  cost benefit analysis of equal treatment for people.

         16  But that said, what is the cost at which this is

         17  affordable?

         18                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: I think the very

         19  fact that you don't know how many people or what the

         20  costs are is indicative of what -- and supports.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I don't think

         22  it's a cost issue, because I think people should be

         23  treated equally, and I actually do know, if you look

         24  at the analysis from every other City from the first

         25  City on, the cost of domestic partnership is in fact
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          2  and has always been negligible, because tragically

          3  people are still not comfortable in coming forward

          4  and saying that they're domestic partners.

          5                 So, the cost has been, and if you

          6  look at the analysis on the health benefit,

          7  negligible.

          8                 And since we're even talking about a

          9  narrower selection of benefits now, the cost is only

         10  going to go down. And clearly there are things that

         11  cause this City fiscal woes over the past year, no

         12  one has ever identified the 1998 domestic

         13  partnership legislation as one of them.

         14                 So, how can you sit here today with

         15  the Garumba bill if you're not sure you're

         16  supportive of this concept?

         17                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Conceptually I

         18  am supportive, and the very fact that I have

         19  negotiated these types of benefits myself would

         20  indicate that I have been. But there are legal

         21  questions, there are financial questions that have

         22  to be addressed in the first instance.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: What's the

         24  legal question?

         25                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Well, I don't
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          2  know.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Why didn't you

          4  come to this hearing prepared to know? I think it

          5  would probably have been obvious that the Council

          6  would ask these type of broader questions.

          7                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: I came to the

          8  Council today at 9:30 to answer questions on one

          9  particular bill.

         10                 If you want me to do some research on

         11  the larger issue, I will be happy to do that. But

         12  I'm not going to answer questions off the top of my

         13  head on something that could be much more

         14  complicated. It may not be, but I don't know.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Is there anyone

         16  from the Administration beyond your office who is

         17  here who could answer that question?

         18                 I mean, I really fail to understand

         19  how the Administration could not have anticipated

         20  these questions.

         21                 And you were told, as I understand --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: We specifically

         23  requested that someone be here to answer the legal

         24  questions.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, then it's
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          2  even more outrageous that you can't.

          3                 I was sure that the Chair had done

          4  that, I just didn't want to say that not knowing for

          5  sure.

          6                 So, then who is here prepared, if

          7  it's not you, to answer the questions that the Chair

          8  had requested there be answers to, which are valid

          9  and fair questions?

         10                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: I had not been

         11  told. It is a state matter. Maybe there is someone

         12  from Corp Counsel that can answer those questions.

         13                 I will tell you that they tend to be

         14  much more complicated once you get into them than

         15  you think at first blush.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You know what?

         17  I'm really, really, really aware of domestic

         18  partnership issues. And I'm really aware of the

         19  complexity of them. So, please don't indicate or

         20  insult my intelligence or my understanding of

         21  domestic partnership, or if its complexity.

         22                 I, in fact, was involved in

         23  litigation myself on this in front of the Human

         24  Rights Commission in 1993 as a domestic partner, so

         25  I am very clear of the complexity.
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          2                 Is there someone from Corp Counsel,

          3  or OLA here?

          4                 Well, if you were not instructed by

          5  OLA to know this information, then obviously that's

          6  OLA's fault, not yours. Who is here, though? I guess

          7  I'm really asking the gentleman from OLA to address

          8  these questions. And if no one is here, why did you

          9  flagrantly disregard the Chair's request?

         10                 You might want to step to the table.

         11                 Cuz, I guess is the answer? Just Cuz?

         12  That's outrageous and it's totally disrespectful to

         13  the domestic partners and City workers who put their

         14  life on the line every day, and it is just a total

         15  outrage that you don't even have the respect to tell

         16  Chair Baez why you chose to disregard her question.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Just to add on

         18  that, while you're asking us to vote on this Garumba

         19  bill today, and at the same time basically avoid the

         20  issue of extending or being supportive, or even

         21  looking at ways with us and the State to see how we

         22  can work together to extend the service to domestic

         23  partners, it's outrageous, and I, myself, as Chair

         24  of this Committee am insulted that no one is here

         25  when I requested someone to be here today to answer
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          2  these questions. And we are certainly going to

          3  discuss this to see how we're going to continue,

          4  Jim, to see how we're going to proceed today with

          5  this particular bill.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Council Member

          9  Lopez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Good morning.

         11                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Good morning.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I have been

         13  here, now it's going to be four years and a half,

         14  and I have seen different bills coming for specific

         15  individuals in regard of situations similar to this

         16  that had to do with the person dying in the line of

         17  duty. In cases that I have seen here vary from a

         18  person who work in the Department of Sanitation, who

         19  got killed because something exploded when they went

         20  to pick up, you know, a garbage can.

         21                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: His name was

         22  "Hanley," yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And a series of

         24  cases that I saw here in which the Administration at

         25  the time was a different Administration than this
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          2  one, they came to request making particular

          3  decisions about particular cases.

          4                 Every time that I was here I was

          5  sympathetic to the pain and the sorrow of that

          6  family, and I did not want to deny to that

          7  particular family the benefit based on some problems

          8  with the law. But over the time that I have been

          9  here, I grow to be impatient with this proposal, and

         10  I'm going to tell you basically why.

         11                 Every time that I have sit here, we

         12  ask the same question from the Administration. Why

         13  is it that you are bringing this particular case,

         14  isolated case, and you want us to make a particular

         15  decision for this person when the universe is

         16  broader than that particular person.

         17                 And I want to understand today what

         18  is special about this person that doesn't apply to

         19  anybody else.

         20                 Why is it that the Administration

         21  feels compelled to come to us one more time, for

         22  four years I've been seeing this, for four years we

         23  have told them don't do this anymore, one more time

         24  sitting in here now, and here that you're asking us

         25  to take one case in consideration, offer to that
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          2  case only this benefit, and nobody else. And that in

          3  the future you will take into consideration the

          4  possibility of studying this and see what you can

          5  do.

          6                 Tell me why today we need to do this,

          7  and for once we should take a position of, you know

          8  what? The ball stop here today. We are not going to

          9  continue with this nonsense, and we are not going to

         10  allow the new administration, the old

         11  administration, whatever administration is coming to

         12  propose this to us without looking to what we ask.

         13  Tell me, why is it that this particular case is so

         14  compelling that we should ignore the history behind

         15  what we have asked over and over again? Which is the

         16  same question we're asking here today.

         17                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: I think the case

         18  speakers for itself and it's clear on its face, in

         19  this particular family, in this particular person

         20  that was involved.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And if I tell

         22  you that I have a firefighter who died in September

         23  11th, who is a Latino firefighter in my district,

         24  who was not married, who did not have a domestic

         25  partnership, if I tell you that that firefighter is
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          2  going to have today an honor in my community, but

          3  his family, who he wasn't married, he had children

          4  with them, no domestic partnership, will not have

          5  this benefit; what you will say to that? And he did

          6  in September 11, too.

          7                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: And who should

          8  we give his benefits to? His benefits are going to

          9  his family.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: He had been

         11  living with this woman.

         12                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Oh, okay, I'm

         13  sorry.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: He had children

         15  with her, but they don't have no domestic

         16  partnership.

         17                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Okay.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And nobody has

         19  identified him. Nobody had brought him to the front

         20  line.

         21                 And the reason I came here to this

         22  meeting today, I want you to know is because I'm

         23  fascinated how the loudest voice, or the voice who

         24  can have an advocate, or the voice who can have

         25  somebody who can embrace him, can get to you and
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          2  have a bill in front of us today, and that is my

          3  problem with this, that the firefighter in my

          4  district who is Latino who died in September 11th

          5  had not had the opportunity to have that voice, and

          6  you don't even know who he is. And that's the reason

          7  I have a problem. How do we resolve therefore the

          8  broader issue? Because in this issue you've resolved

          9  it for that family. They have the fortune to get to

         10  Governor Pataki or somebody in their family, and

         11  they got the fortune to be here, and they got the

         12  fortune for a drafting of a piece of legislation,

         13  what happened with the other family who don't have

         14  that fortune? They will going to be served piecemeal

         15  by piecemeal, that's the way we're going to address

         16  this?

         17                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: I have never met

         18  the people that are referred to in this bill. But

         19  since you asked the question, why am I here today?

         20  I'm here today because William Feehan, who is the

         21  First Deputy Commissioner of the Fire Department,

         22  was with this woman when this man died and he said

         23  to me, I may be leaving the City, Jim, but you'll be

         24  around, and if you could please keep this in mind

         25  and do whatever you can to see that this bill is
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          2  passed, I really and truly would appreciate it.

          3                 Bill Feehan was the First Deputy

          4  Commissioner, one of my best friends, he was killed

          5  on September 11th, as well. So, it's been a personal

          6  issue with me because of a commitment that I made to

          7  Bill Feehan, and that's why I'm here.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then that

          9  answered my question, Madam Chair. This answered my

         10  question. I admire the position that have been taken

         11  by you, and I think that you are a man of honor, you

         12  are committing yourself to comply with a promise

         13  that you made for an individual, that by the way, I

         14  believe they deserve the benefit. I believe that. I

         15  don't question that. My problem is that the way that

         16  we're handling this is by people of honor and by

         17  promises. I am the first one of honors and I would

         18  promise something to be done for somebody, and then

         19  somebody else, and then somebody else, but when it

         20  is we're going to stop the ball and we're going to

         21  then look at this from the real angle that needs to

         22  be addressed, not by piecemeal, by piecemeal, by

         23  piecemeal, but the issue themselves.

         24                 We have cases like this, I don't care

         25  if it's one or it's 20, this is not the way to
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          2  address it.

          3                 And if it's a commitment from the

          4  Administration at the Governor's office now, nor the

          5  Mayor's office, because this is something that we're

          6  doing after a thought that somebody have, but from

          7  the Governor's office, if he really mean domestic

          8  partnership getting benefits, then put it in the

          9  table with a bill, and ask the Mayor the same thing.

         10  Covering everybody, not just one person when the

         11  incident occurred.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Thank you,

         13  Councilwoman Lopez.

         14                 We've also been joined by my

         15  colleague, Council Member Monserrate, who also has a

         16  question.

         17                 Council member.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair.

         20                 Good morning. Let me just first and

         21  foremost state that I would be in support of this

         22  bill expanding coverage for this family who has

         23  suffered and the domestic partner.

         24                 But I also share concerns with my

         25  colleagues about the other people whose names or
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          2  cases are not being brought before us, because those

          3  family members have suffered the same loss. Those

          4  family members have lost a wage earner, have lost

          5  coverage, and other things that come with domestic

          6  partnership.

          7                 So, I'm very concerned, and I want to

          8  ask you, and perhaps this has been asked and

          9  answered already, what's the Administration's

         10  position regarding this issue? Is this going to

         11  continually be a piecemeal approach, or are we going

         12  to take an honest look at the global picture?

         13                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: As I indicated

         14  earlier, we will be happy to take a look at the

         15  larger picture.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Thank you, Council

         18  Member.

         19                 Council Member Sears.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         21  Madam Chair.

         22                 In support of this proposed bill,

         23  certainly from myself and I think the sentiments of

         24  the Committee are not opposed to this.

         25                 I think the issue is far more
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          2  outreaching and requires serious thoughts and some

          3  proposed action in terms of the broader picture.

          4                 It is very difficult to isolate one

          5  situation from another in doing that. So, I think

          6  that, and you've been asked, the Administration

          7  really needs to review this and come back with after

          8  their review whether they support this or not and

          9  not necessarily relate that in terms of dollars and

         10  cents. We're talking about a philosophical

         11  situation, we're talking about rights, and I don't

         12  think that can be equated in dollars and cents.

         13                 Certainly what is before us is not

         14  equated in dollars and cents, it is equated in what

         15  was the right thing to do, and I don't think that

         16  what is the right thing to do is an isolated

         17  situation. So, I would encourage the Administration

         18  to really review this and come back and give to the

         19  chair the information that is needed to help this

         20  Committee to move further with it.

         21                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: I understand.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         23  Madam Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Thank you.

         25                 Council Member Golden.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair.

          4                 I, too, understand the concerns of

          5  this Committee, and I understand that we have a City

          6  domestic partnership law, and I understand that we

          7  may have a few cases that have not been brought

          8  forward. And that maybe the Domestic Partnership law

          9  has to be reviewed, maybe the policy in New York

         10  City has to be reviewed, but to hold up the benefits

         11  to a widower, her husband or domestic partner,

         12  killed in the line of duty, to at this point

         13  politicize or to attempt to hold back benefits for

         14  this individual family is the wrong thing to do.

         15                 To approach the City to find out why

         16  the City hasn't, to ask this Commissioner to go back

         17  to review the cases and to have another hearing with

         18  this Committee as to why others have not been

         19  brought forward is the proper thing to do. But the

         20  improper thing to do is to not to vote this out this

         21  morning.

         22                 The improper thing is not to send the

         23  wrong message to the City thing of New York in these

         24  times of need. The right thing to do is to proceed,

         25  give this family what they're entitled to, and to
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          2  study and bring this Commissioner back another time

          3  for those that we are concerned about.

          4                 So, I ask this Committee to call a

          5  vote for this Committee to do what is right. Thank

          6  you, Madam Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Thank you, Council

          8  Member.

          9                 Council Member Addabbo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         11  Madam Chair.

         12                 I, too, want to be put on the record

         13  that I am for the proposed legislation, and I think

         14  any delay in time is critical, not only for this

         15  family, for the many that are out there.

         16                 So, again, I do hope if we do not

         17  vote on this today that any length of time between

         18  today and the actual vote being critical is a short

         19  period of time.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Thank you, Council

         21  member.

         22                 I just want to add before, because

         23  one of the Council members have the question, that

         24  once again, while we are very sympathetic to the

         25  family of the firefighter who lost his life, you
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          2  still have not answered our questions, and what I

          3  requested today is that we are going, I'm

          4  recommending to my colleagues, to this Committee,

          5  that we lay aside the Garumba bill today. However,

          6  this does not mean that we will not take this bill

          7  up again, but I think that the Administration has to

          8  be better prepared to answer our questions, and give

          9  us assurances that the Administration will work with

         10  us in some way to extend these benefits to domestic

         11  partners.

         12                 Council Member Monserrate, do you

         13  want to --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Yes, I

         15  just wanted to make a statement to one of my

         16  colleague's statements.

         17                 I think that the members of this

         18  Committee are clearly that we want to do the right

         19  thing by this family, but we also want to do the

         20  right thing by the other families that aren't here

         21  today that don't have a voice, that don't have a

         22  loud speaker that can bring this bill in front of

         23  us. So, the term of politicizing, I don't think this

         24  issue, or Council members of this Committee are

         25  politicizing this. This is not about politicizing,
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          2  this is trying to do the right thing by all the

          3  survivors or domestic partners who I believe are

          4  being unfairly not given their benefits and their

          5  due.

          6                 So, we should make that very clear.

          7  And for someone to state here that certain members,

          8  because we are interested in the global picture of

          9  all, say that this issue is being unfairly

         10  politicized, I take offense to.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Council Member

         12  Quinn.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         14  add, I think that, you know, I agree with my

         15  colleague Council Member Monserrate's statement, and

         16  also I agree with parts of my colleague Council

         17  Member Golden's statement, and I think that if the

         18  Office of Legislative Affairs had come prepared

         19  today, we might not in fact be laying this bill

         20  over, and I think that really if we are going to

         21  look to try to lay blame at why we're not taking in

         22  this action today, it's because the Office of

         23  Legislative Affairs did not come prepared to answer

         24  questions, they were not blind-sided, they were

         25  given those questions in advance. It is unfair that
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          2  they didn't instruct the Commissioner of Labor

          3  Relations that the Committee had this concern, and,

          4  you know, I share that frustration, that the Council

          5  and the Chair was not afforded the respect and the

          6  appropriate follow-ups and she had appropriately

          7  reached out in advance.

          8                 And I, again, want to thank the Chair

          9  for her leadership on this matter.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Thank you.

         11                 Council Member Golden.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair.

         14                 The word "politicizing" may have been

         15  an overreach, but I will tell you that to take today

         16  to hold up the benefits for a family because of

         17  others does leave I think a bitter taste in not only

         18  that family, in the Fire Department, but in the City

         19  of New York.

         20                 We could very easily pass this out

         21  today and bring these people back and get answers as

         22  to why we can't get others brought forward. And

         23  we're not talking about more than three or four

         24  cases.

         25                 So, I really am at a loss that we
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          2  would hold up the benefits to a firefighter's

          3  domestic partner because of two or three others that

          4  haven't been, or four others that haven't been

          5  brought forward yet, when, in fact, you could bring

          6  this Commissioner and the City, the Administration

          7  forward at any point and ask them those questions.

          8                 I think it's just wrong, it sends the

          9  wrong message, and we shouldn't in this time of need

         10  be given the wrong message to the City of New York,

         11  and especially to that family, to that man who

         12  worked so hard and gave his life and his domestic

         13  partner is going to walk out of here today and is

         14  going to see that this board, this Committee, is

         15  more interested in other situations.

         16                 This man came prepared to talk about

         17  this bill. This bill was talked about. That's what

         18  he was asked to do, that's what he did. If we want

         19  to ask him further and go into other cases, we

         20  should do that at another time, and not air our

         21  dirty laundry in public today.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Council Member,

         23  thank you. And I just want to share with you that I

         24  had requested that someone be here from the

         25  Administration to answer our questions and as Chair
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          2  of this Committee, what I am willing to do is hold

          3  an emergency hearing regarding the Garumba case as

          4  soon as the Administration is prepared to answer our

          5  questions.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 For the record, is anyone currently

          8  getting benefits? The children, right?

          9                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: The children are

         10  getting the benefits.

         11                 There's really no additional cost. I

         12  realize there's a small number of, a few thousand

         13  dollars on the bill, but the children will be

         14  getting the benefits.

         15                 This takes the benefits and gives

         16  them to his domestic partner.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Council Members,

         18  for my colleagues, can we please take a five-minute

         19  recess?

         20                 (Recess taken.)

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: I would like to

         22  call this meeting to order.

         23                 We are going to proceed on the

         24  preconsidered SLR, which is the hat bill. We will be

         25  hearing testimony now from Mr. Bob North.
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          2                 State your name for the record,

          3  please.

          4                 MR. NORTH: Thank you, Madam Chair.

          5                 I'm Robert North, I'm the Chief

          6  Actuary for the New York City Retirement System.

          7  With me today is David Lester, and Administrative

          8  Actuary in the Office of the Actuary.

          9                 I have the following comments as the

         10  Actuary for the Retirement Systems on Senate 6155-A,

         11  Assembly 9722-A.

         12                 This bill provides three-quarter

         13  disability to certain police, special police

         14  positions, and also a presumption of disability for

         15  HIV, Hepatitis and tuberculosis.

         16                 With respect to technical issues,

         17  this bill amends General Municipal Law, Section

         18  2070, as added by Chapter 587 of the laws of '98,

         19  and this part of the bill was not amended to make

         20  the legislation prospect, if only it allows anyone

         21  who is exposed on or after March 17th, 1996, to be

         22  considered eligible for the benefit.

         23                 However, Section 3 of the bill, which

         24  amends RSSL Section 607-A.B, appears to apply only

         25  after the date of enactment. This creates a conflict
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          2  in the statute that could lead to some questions on

          3  how it should be administered, and whether or not

          4  the retirement system might only pay for a

          5  prospective incidence, but leave some question about

          6  retroactive incidence up in the air as to who might

          7  be obligated.

          8                 Section 3 also continues to contain

          9  an error that's been in the bill for a long time,

         10  the duplicate naming of the positions of the

         11  eligible titles.

         12                 Section 2 of the bill which

         13  eliminates the 60, 50, 40 limits is redundant and

         14  unnecessary. It is not harmful to the accuracy of

         15  the bill, but it is redundant.

         16                 Finally, Section 4 is of some concern

         17  because it's just unclear how it's supposed to

         18  function. It states that the benefits shall be

         19  granted pursuant to some common and administrative

         20  law applicable to police officers employed by the

         21  City of New York, but these benefits appear to be

         22  benefits to be paid under the New York City

         23  Employees' Retirement System, and it's not clear how

         24  references to administrative and common law

         25  applicable to police officers of the City of New
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          2  York would be interpreted for implementing the bill.

          3                 And as mentioned to the Committee on

          4  prior occasions, the Actuary believes bills should

          5  be technically correct, understandable,

          6  administrable, and accomplish their policy

          7  objectives. And I thank the Committee for the

          8  opportunity to put some comments on the record of

          9  the Actuary's observations.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Could I have a

         13  question to the Actuary?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: You have a

         15  question? Absolutely. Council Member Golden.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you,

         17  Madam Chair.

         18                 The minus technicality, I hate to say

         19  that "minus technicality," but minus technicality,

         20  is this bill a sound bill? The three technicalities

         21  that you pointed out, is it a sound bill and does

         22  the Administration endorse this bill?

         23                 MR. NORTH: Let me deal with the

         24  latter first. I cannot speak for the Administration.

         25  I do believe they may have filed a memo in
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          2  opposition, but I'm not here on their behalf.

          3                 With respect to the soundness of the

          4  bill, as I stated before, I think if it's not

          5  written technically correctly, and there's some

          6  questions about how we're supposed to administer it

          7  once it is enacted, I would question its soundness.

          8                 I'm not commenting about the

          9  appropriateness of policy here, I leave that for you

         10  all, but it would be nice if what was written was

         11  technically correct, understandable, and clearly

         12  administrable without us having to spend a lot of

         13  time to figure out certain elements of the bill.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you.

         15                 How is this different for the

         16  three-quarter bill for the New York City Police

         17  Department and the New York City Fire Department?

         18                 MR. NORTH: The language here is

         19  somewhat different. In concept it's the same basic

         20  bill with respect to the HIV, hepatitis and

         21  tuberculosis. It lacks on the three-quarter bill its

         22  definition of in the -- let me get the words right.

         23  Yes, I'd have to go back and doublecheck, but the

         24  wording here is "becomes physically or mentally

         25  incapacitated for performance of duties as a natural
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          2  and proximate result of an injury sustained in the

          3  performance of discharge of his or her duties," and

          4  that would meet the criteria.

          5                 This is one that I might defer to

          6  Corp Counsel and Legal Counsel. There are, I know,

          7  at the Board of Trustees and the New York City

          8  Employees Retirement System constantly discussions

          9  on exactly what these words mean in terms of

         10  distinguishing accidents from incidents and not all

         11  of the legislation is written in exactly the same

         12  way, leading to lots of discussion.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Would this

         14  bill give more to the present people requesting this

         15  bill today, versus the New York City Police

         16  Department or Fire Department three-quarters bill?

         17                 MR. NORTH: For those deemed eligible

         18  I believe the benefit would end up very consistent.

         19  But there may be some question as to whether certain

         20  incidents might be classified as three-quarter

         21  incidents under this bill that may or may not be so

         22  classified under the police or fire legislation.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Meaning that

         24  the people on this bill would benefit versus the

         25  Police Department and Fire Department?
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          2                 MR. NORTH: Or vice versa.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: So they could

          4  benefit as well?

          5                 MR. NORTH: Yes. It could be that some

          6  individuals might be eligible here who wouldn't be

          7  under police and fire, or vice versa.

          8                 This wording is modeled after the

          9  emergency medical technicians wording in the bill

         10  that was passed for them in, I believe, nineteen

         11  ninety -- well, recently.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And the cost

         13  of this bill is? And over the next several years?

         14                 MR. NORTH: The Office of the Actuary

         15  has not put a fiscal note on this. It's somewhat

         16  difficult to evaluate these incidents in that they

         17  are particularly unclear as to what would happen

         18  between the period of 1996 and the date of

         19  enactment, if whether or not there would be some

         20  retroactive cases in that event.

         21                 The fiscal note on the bill talks

         22  about eventually increasing the $500,000 per year. I

         23  can not say whether that's right or wrong. I have no

         24  reason to believe that it's way out of order.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: If the counsel
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          2  could explain to me the reason for March 16th. You

          3  don't have to do it in the mic, if you can just come

          4  over to me and explain to me what the reasoning for

          5  that date is.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 MR. NORTH: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Any more questions

          9  from my colleagues?

         10                 Council Member McMahon.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Good

         12  afternoon, Mr. North. How is the Actuary today?

         13                 This is the second time that you've

         14  been before us testifying that the language in the

         15  bill that's being considered is unfortunate, or

         16  unfortunately phrased or technically makes for a

         17  difficult situation. Is this always the case when

         18  bills are presented on dealing with pension matters

         19  like this?

         20                 And my question really is, how are we

         21  going to resolve this? Who should be drafting these

         22  bills in your opinion? These really come from the

         23  state, don't they?

         24                 MR. NORTH: Well, first of all, in

         25  recent years it seems like a high percentage of the
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          2  bills that are drafted and presented for legislative

          3  approval are flawed in one way or another. It's very

          4  frustrating to those of us who are involved in the

          5  later administration of those bills.

          6                 In terms of where they come from

          7  today, for the most part the plan sponsors are

          8  responsible for arranging the drafting, most of them

          9  hire attorneys and consultants who do so.

         10                 In many cases, simply because of the

         11  complexity, if you don't do a lot of this, and you

         12  aren't intimately familiar on a day-to-day basis

         13  with the New York City pension laws, it's very

         14  difficult to do these things precisely and fill in

         15  all the little odds and ends that are necessary.

         16                 In terms of what might be done,

         17  ideally, I would like to see that the Corporation

         18  Counsel, who has the real expertise on these, be the

         19  ones who drafted everything, but of course they do

         20  not hold themselves out as the drafter of bills or

         21  labor organizations or others, although often times

         22  when asked they will offer input and assistance.

         23                 I don't know, I've been dealing with

         24  this for several years now, and we're rather

         25  frustrated, but --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I mean,

          3  that's a problem we have to address irrespective of

          4  the merits of this bill.

          5                 I mean, that's something we have to

          6  look at more collectively to deal with legislation

          7  of this nature, but not this particular bill.

          8                 MR. NORTH: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay.

         10                 The City has given us some memos

         11  saying that this bill does not require that the

         12  disabling injury be the result of an accident, and

         13  it says that that is the case with other uniformed

         14  services; is that correct?

         15                 MR. NORTH: I'd want to withhold

         16  comment on the precise administrative nuances of

         17  what constitutes accident versus incident and the

         18  eligibility element of these bills. Those terms have

         19  been litigated and administered over many, many

         20  years, and I do know today that there are still a

         21  lot of questions outstanding on the language of the

         22  Emergency Medical Technician portion of this bill

         23  because it really isn't necessarily looking to the

         24  unusual unfortuitous event, it's looking to in the

         25  line of duty which it's a slightly different
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          2  standard that I don't believe has been fully

          3  clarified.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But it's my

          5  belief Police and Fire, the question is whether or

          6  not the incident occurred on the job. I mean, that

          7  seems to be my understanding, and as a litigator as

          8  well in my prior life, the issue was always whether

          9  or not the incident occurred on the job. Is the

         10  nuances finer than that with the Police and Fire

         11  Department, or is it simply whether or not it

         12  happened on the job?

         13                 I mean, they give the example that a

         14  police officer could be driving along and get a flat

         15  tire and in changing the tire hurt his or her back

         16  and that wouldn't be covered, but I find that's not

         17  my understanding of the law, that if a policeman is

         18  on the job and does a job and hurts his or her back

         19  while doing something that is accidental and that

         20  would be covered by the three-quarters pension law.

         21                 Am I correct, or is the City's

         22  Legislative Affairs office correct?

         23                 MR. NORTH: I'm going to have to defer

         24  because this is a very complex subject in which I

         25  can't say I got every nuance down right. But the
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          2  example you gave gets into that question of incident

          3  versus accident, and normally I believe people do

          4  have to be on the job first, and there's a question

          5  of when on the job is if you're a full-time peace

          6  officer. But then if you're in cases of some of

          7  these plans where the definition of accident

          8  applies, if you're doing something that's in the

          9  normal course of things and you happen to get hurt,

         10  and there's no intervening outside agency, that

         11  would be a clear, it's an incident but it would not

         12  rise to the level of a three-quarters accident, and

         13  then you get down to facts and circumstances.

         14                 So, this whole area of exactly who's

         15  eligible and who would get the three-quarters, very

         16  complex. And I don't say I completely understand all

         17  the nuances between all the different systems.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So, it's

         19  certainly not clear-cut, and certainly not as

         20  clear-cut as the Mayor's memo would state it to be.

         21                 MR. NORTH: To me, no. I would just

         22  point out, however, they may be entirely right, I'm

         23  just not positive that I know enough of the nuances

         24  to say for the record here that I'm comfortable with

         25  that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

          3  Mr. North. And, again, give my regards to the

          4  Actuary.

          5                 MR. NORTH: I shall. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Thank you.

          7                 MR. NORTH: Thank you, Madam Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Thank you. Now

          9  testifying will be Vinnie Montalbano.

         10                 MR. MONTALBANO: Thank you, Madam

         11  Chair. I know you are all in a rush and we've been

         12  here a long time, so we'll be very brief. We just

         13  want to answer a couple of questions.

         14                 I'm Vincent Montalbano, I am the

         15  Legislative Representative for Local 237 at City

         16  Hall and I'm joined by Greg Floyd, who is the

         17  Director of Citywide Services.

         18                 First of all, we want to make sure

         19  that everyone realizes once again that we are not

         20  seeking, and we feel the bill does what we want, we

         21  are not seeking anything more than is now available

         22  to other uniformed services, including EMS, Fire,

         23  Corrections, Police. And it is, in fact, Section 4,

         24  which was pointed out by the Actuary, is something

         25  he was concerned about, was actually put in there to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  satisfy the Governor's and some of the legislative

          3  leaders objections that the bill, the original bill

          4  may have given us more.

          5                 So, we were very explicit that it

          6  doesn't give us more, it gives us exactly what

          7  everyone else is entitled to.

          8                 As far as the technical nuance about

          9  retroactivity that we do not agree that that is a

         10  problem in the bill. It is not our intention to seek

         11  any retroactivity. The bill was always drafted as a

         12  bill going forward in terms of providing benefits,

         13  as every other one is, and we would hope that you

         14  would act favorably on this so that we can bring it

         15  up to the State Legislature, which has examined the

         16  bill and has felt that we've answered all the

         17  questions that they had.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Thank you.

         19                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         20  questions? Council Members, any questions?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: No. Great job

         22  today, thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 We're going to back to the Garumba
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          2  bill. We're just waiting for Corporate Counsel from

          3  the Administration to come here. So, I ask that you

          4  please just be a little bit patient. It's my

          5  understanding they're en route.

          6                 (Recess taken.)

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: We will now proceed

          8  with the Garumba bill.

          9                 Before we proceed, I would like to

         10  take this opportunity to reintroduce, and we have

         11  been joined by other members, Council Member Golden,

         12  Council Member Fidler, Council Member Quinn, Council

         13  Member Monserrate, Council Member Dilan, Council

         14  Member Lanza, Council Member Oddo and Council Member

         15  Gallagher.

         16                 Council Member Madeline Provenzano is

         17  also with us, and Council Member McMahon is also

         18  with us.

         19                 I would like to take this opportunity

         20  to thank the Administration for coming here today

         21  and testifying. And just for the record, this is my

         22  second hearing on this Committee and both times I

         23  have requested that someone from Corporate Counsel

         24  be here to answer the questions of my colleagues,

         25  and once again, for the record, in the future, I
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          2  don't think that that is such a big request that

          3  someone from Corporate Counsel come out and answer

          4  the questions.

          5                 Today we're going to be hearing from,

          6  once again, Corporate Counsel, and Mr. Hanley, who

          7  was here earlier regarding the Garumba bill.

          8                 I realize that there are some

          9  difficulties with extending these benefits on the

         10  wide scale to the domestic partners of employees who

         11  have already passed away, but would there be a

         12  problem with State legislation extending these

         13  benefits to, for example, future employees? And can

         14  you just state your name for the record?

         15                 MR. DAVID: My name is Anshel David,

         16  first name is A-n-s-h-e-l, second name is David. I'm

         17  the Deputy Chief of the Pensions Division at the Law

         18  Department. Right now I'm acting as the Chief

         19  because our permanent chief has been out ill on a

         20  long-term basis.

         21                 In response to the question, it's

         22  really hard to say until I've actually seen the

         23  draft of such legislation, and we've had an

         24  opportunity to review it both from a legal point of

         25  view and from a practical and financial point of
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          2  view.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Right, would you be

          4  willing to work with us on a draft? And you weren't

          5  here earlier but we have some concerns, we have some

          6  questions, and we had requested that someone be

          7  here, and while we're certainly supportive of this

          8  bill, we're asking that this also be extended to

          9  other domestic partners.

         10                 MR. DAVID: Well, the answer is yes,

         11  of course, we'd be willing to look at any draft and

         12  give our advice and suggestions on it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Council members, I

         14  know we have some questions.

         15                 Council Member Golden.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I pass.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Council Member

         18  Quinn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 I think as it was clear prior to the

         21  recess there is a number of different issues, kind

         22  of on the table, if you will, at this hearing, in my

         23  opinion, anyway. One is the substantive matter of

         24  the Administration's philosophical position on

         25  domestic partners. And then the other, in my
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          2  opinion, is why the Chair's request for Corp Counsel

          3  had not been, you know, why her request had not been

          4  fulfilled.

          5                 For the record, I want to state that,

          6  you know, I appreciate that the Administration, they

          7  finally saw fit to send Corporation Counsel at the

          8  request of the Chair, the State and Federal

          9  Legislation Chair, and I very much appreciate you

         10  being here, particularly since you were not afforded

         11  the advance notice perhaps that you should have

         12  been.

         13                 That said, I guess I have a number of

         14  questions. The Administration's position on domestic

         15  partnership and equal benefits for domestic partners

         16  is what? Just to start at kind of the beginning of

         17  the issue and then we'll ramp up.

         18                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: As I had

         19  indicated, we were here to testify about the Garumba

         20  bill, but we'd be happy to take a look going forward

         21  with expanding domestic partners to other people. We

         22  have done that in the past and we will take a look

         23  at it in the future.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I appreciate

         25  that. I guess my question was more to Corp Counsel,
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          2  or to whomever is appropriate, since you, as you

          3  stated before, were sent here and prepared to

          4  testify on one matter.

          5                 Council Member Monserrate is

          6  littering. I'm trying to raise the fine for that,

          7  so...

          8                 My question is more basic even than

          9  that. Just for the record, what is the Bloomberg

         10  Administration's position on equal benefits for

         11  domestic partners? Not on expanding the definition,

         12  not on anything changing the registration, just on

         13  the very kind of basic, to start, as I said, at the

         14  beginning and then move on.

         15                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Well, I don't

         16  that we're the right people to ask for the policy

         17  questions for the entire Administration. Usually we

         18  have input from our respective agencies in that

         19  process, but that's usually done as a part of an

         20  overall analysis.

         21                 Setting the policy for the

         22  Administration is not something that I believe

         23  neither Anshel nor myself are the appropriate people

         24  to answer that question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Could someone
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          2  perhaps, maybe the Office of Legislative Affairs are

          3  the appropriate folks to answer that question?

          4                 Okay, so, we're starting this off,

          5  although Corp Counsel was sent, not knowing the

          6  Administration's position on domestic partnership,

          7  okay.

          8                 Our position is, though, the

          9  Administration's position, which I agree with, is

         10  that Ms. Garumba should be afforded full domestic

         11  partnership status and death benefits as it relates

         12  to her domestic partner who died in the line of

         13  duty?

         14                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: We are here to

         15  support that bill, yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: What is the

         17  Administration's position on future hires being

         18  afforded the same coverage in death benefits as this

         19  bill seeks to provide Ms. Garumba? That would be for

         20  future hires.

         21                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: After the

         22  appropriate amount of analysis is done, then at that

         23  point we would be in a better position to formulate

         24  a recommendation and an opinion for the appropriate

         25  people.
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          2                 Let me talk a little bit about what

          3  the policy is, or the procedure is, not the policy.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No, because we

          5  don't know what the policy is.

          6                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: The procedure.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

          8                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: There are five

          9  pension systems in the City of New York. Generally

         10  speaking we don't make modifications to those

         11  pension systems, unless we had a conversation with

         12  the boards of trustees of each of those five

         13  systems.

         14                 A goodly amount of work is usually

         15  done with the Corporation Counsel, our pension laws,

         16  in some case, go way, way back and are arcane

         17  indeed. In addition to that, the Office of

         18  Management and Budget is usually involved in that

         19  process, with Corporation Counsel's Office, and

         20  certainly the Office of Labor Relations.

         21                 After a complete analysis is done,

         22  and these things can get very complicated indeed, at

         23  that point then we usually will have a conversation

         24  with the representatives of the five pension

         25  systems, and at that point we're usually in a better
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          2  position to formulate an opinion after a thorough

          3  analysis has been done.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Typically,

          5  though, also, when an administration would even

          6  enter into such discussions, they would be guided by

          7  philosophical outlook on whether the reduction,

          8  expansion, change, manipulation, whatever the case

          9  may be at any moment in time, usually the

         10  Administration is guided by a philosophy at the

         11  question at hand. But we are unclear that if, in

         12  fact, you go and do that, you would be guided by any

         13  philosophy whatsoever.

         14                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: The process I'm

         15  engaged in of collective bargaining is one of

         16  convincing the other side. I try to go into these

         17  issues --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But you don't

         19  know what your position is, so you are unclear what

         20  you would be trying to convince them of, since

         21  you're unclear and no one in the room is clear if

         22  the Mayor has a position on whether or not domestic

         23  partners should have equal benefits. So you would be

         24  hampered as a labor negotiator inasmuch as you would

         25  be in a room on either side of the table, since you
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          2  did not know what your position was.

          3                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: I'd like to go

          4  back and finish the sentence that I was in the

          5  middle of.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

          7                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: I usually go

          8  into these issues with an open mind. When I have an

          9  open mind I can be convinced from people on the

         10  other side of the merit of their argument, and

         11  that's the process that I've been involved in for

         12  quite some time, and would continue to be involved

         13  in prospectively.

         14                 Now, what the specifics are, that's

         15  usually what we spend our time analyzing. But

         16  preconceived notions are something that I usually

         17  try to avoid.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, I mean I

         19  think there's a difference between a preconceived

         20  notion and the Administration having a position on

         21  whether or not domestic partners deserve equal

         22  benefits from the City, and then the City trying to

         23  make sure that all benefits that are afforded to

         24  domestic partners are equal at every moment.

         25  Obviously this is a different type of a benefit
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          2  because it's one where the State is involved. So, I

          3  don't think it's a preconceived notion, I guess my

          4  question was, would, if you went and did the review,

          5  would we be guided by the Administration's position

          6  on this since beginning the hearing you seem to have

          7  focused your concern more on technical and fiscal

          8  issues. And it's not, you know, right or wrong, but

          9  now what I'm hearing actually is that beyond the

         10  Garumba bill, which everyone is supportive of, we're

         11  actually not engaged in a technical or fiscal

         12  question, we're actually engaged much more at the

         13  core and the heart at a philosophical matter.

         14                 So, I just want to say I guess -- I

         15  mean, is that correct? Because you don't know, we

         16  don't know what the position, philosophical position

         17  is?

         18                 Because one could have a

         19  philosophical position, and I would argue that if

         20  one had a philosophical position in this case

         21  supportive of domestic partnership we could overcome

         22  the technical, legal, whatever, hurdles. But for

         23  argument's sake, one could have a philosophical

         24  position and you might determine that you think the

         25  hurdles are not overcomable, but we're not even
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          2  clear that we have the same philosophical position?

          3  I just want to understand where I start, you know

          4  what I mean, on following up on this issue after

          5  this hearing.

          6                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Well, to correct

          7  something that you had indicated, that I guess you

          8  thought you took from my earlier statement, the

          9  technical and legal aspects are something that we

         10  would want to take a look at in the first instance

         11  so that we have a reasoned position, or reasoned

         12  decisions are made after you've done that kind of

         13  homework. I certainly haven't in any way backed away

         14  from that view. That's usually the way we like to do

         15  things.

         16                 You had indicated you wanted somebody

         17  from the Corp Counsel, so that's why we have

         18  somebody from Corp Counsel. My view is the same,

         19  that hasn't changed.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I didn't mean

         21  to indicate you should step away from your need to

         22  do a technical review. I guess my point is, I'm

         23  saddened, and quite frankly, surprised, and maybe

         24  even shocked that after having run for Mayor and

         25  been Mayor for a period of time, that the Bloomberg
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          2  Administration, that Mayor Bloomberg appears not to

          3  have a position on domestic partnership benefits,

          4  and whether or not they should be equal in all

          5  instances. And he might have a position I agree

          6  with, he might have one I disagree with, he might

          7  have one I disagree with. I would hope actually that

          8  he would have one I agreed with, but I am just

          9  incredibly surprised that at this date and time in

         10  the Bloomberg Administration he appears to have no

         11  position at all, or minimally one that is not, that

         12  his staff on any level is not able to articulate to

         13  the Council. Which leads me to believe that you

         14  would do due diligence in doing your review, but

         15  that nothing would come out of it, by no fault of

         16  yours, but because the Administration has no

         17  position. Therefore, I would interpret that they

         18  would have no real interest in moving this forward

         19  in any matter beyond Garumba.

         20                 So, that is my interpretation of it

         21  because I have been given no information to indicate

         22  anything else. Which leads me to believe that today

         23  the Council and the Mayor together will help out Ms.

         24  Garumba and her children, which is the right thing

         25  to do, but that the battle in Albany to make sure
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          2  that other domestic partners who survive after

          3  they've lost the person closest to them in the line

          4  of duty, that the battle for those people will be

          5  waged in Albany by the City Council alone. And I'm

          6  shocked and very, very saddened by that.

          7                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Thank you, Council

          9  Member.

         10                 Council Member McMahon.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         12  Madam Chairwoman.

         13                 Good afternoon, gentlemen.

         14                 I just want to make sure I understand

         15  what we're being asked to do with this bill.

         16                 Basically what we're doing is we're

         17  taking the benefits that the children receive

         18  anyway, and just transferring the right to receive

         19  the benefits to the domestic partner here, the

         20  mother; is that correct?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Simply put, the

         22  answer is yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And we're

         24  being asked to do it only in the specific case of

         25  the Garumba family, for Firefighter Garumba; is that
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          2  correct?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: That's correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. Thank

          5  you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Council Member

          7  Monserrate.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

          9  Madam Chair.

         10                 I think all our colleagues have

         11  expressed that we are in support of the family in

         12  this time, but I also want to publicly express my

         13  support for my colleague Christine Quinn's position

         14  in that there needs to be a debate and an analysis

         15  on this topic and it needs to be done sooner than

         16  later.

         17                 I believe, like I stated, I believe

         18  that the members of this Committee are prepared to

         19  do the right thing by this family, because they are

         20  a family, different context, different people

         21  perceive families in different ways than what those

         22  structures are. But I believe that the analysis and

         23  the debate regarding this very important issue must

         24  be taken on immediately. That's my position also.

         25  And I would say that it would be unfair to the other
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          2  families, like the Garumbas who might be in a

          3  similar situation, to have lost the primary

          4  breadwinner of the family, someone who has served in

          5  our uniformed forces here in the City of New York

          6  and was made the greatest sacrifice, to deny those

          7  other families is unacceptable.

          8                 So, I want to send a clear message to

          9  the Administration, we are looking to have a

         10  cooperative effort with you to work on resolving

         11  this issue.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Any other? Anyone

         14  else?

         15                 Before we call a vote, in closing I

         16  just want to say that although I cannot understand

         17  the unwillingness for the Administration to support

         18  the concept of the pension benefits to domestic

         19  partners, and for us to be able to work together, I

         20  want to thank you for being here, and I hope that

         21  today, as of today, that we can at least have

         22  someone once again from the Administration when

         23  requested to be at our hearings, and in doing that

         24  we are going to be voting today on the Garumba bill,

         25  and also we will be submitting to Albany legislation
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          2  that is going to be extended to our all domestic

          3  partners, and we will be working on this in the next

          4  few weeks.

          5                 So, we will now be voting on the

          6  Garumba bill, and thank you once again. Sorry, and

          7  that bill.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Are we voting

         12  on both bills jointly?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Fidler.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Madam

         17  Chairman, if I could be excused to explain my vote?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Absolutely,

         19  Councilman.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I am voting

         21  aye on both, and I want to point out that in doing

         22  so, I think that we are, in fact, establishing some

         23  precedent and some feeling of this body that these

         24  benefits be extended to all domestic partners,

         25  because while it's right for the Garumba family, it
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          2  is obviously also right for everyone else that would

          3  be similarly situated. I can't imagine why we would

          4  pick out a single New Yorker and deny other New

          5  Yorkers of the same situations, so I hope that

          6  message is clear to the Administration, both here in

          7  the City and in Albany. I vote aye on both.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: May I explain

         10  my vote, Madam Chairwoman?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Absolutely,

         12  Councilman.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I, too, join

         14  in the sentiments as expressed by my colleague, Lou

         15  Fidler, from Brooklyn, and will be casting a vote on

         16  both of these bills, and I am actually expressing my

         17  gratitude as well to those members of this Committee

         18  who firmly believe that the issue of domestic

         19  partnership is one that we should be drawing the

         20  line and clarifying and holding the feet of the

         21  Administration to the fire on, if they also have the

         22  wisdom and the compassion for the Garumba family not

         23  to hold up their particular circumstance as they

         24  move forward, as we move forward to deal with this

         25  issue as a whole body, and I express the gratitude
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          2  of that family, which is a Staten Island family, and

          3  proudly vote aye on both of these bills.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Monserrate.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Aye on

          6  both.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Golden.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I, too, ask to

          9  explain my vote.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Absolutely,

         11  Councilman.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I personally

         13  reach out and I thank this Committee for doing, and

         14  coming together and doing the right thing, and it is

         15  the right thing, and all of us working toward making

         16  this City a better City in the future.

         17                 So, for that I vote aye on that bill.

         18                 On the second bill, I'm going to

         19  abstain until I get some more information on it.

         20  Hopefully I can get some more information by this

         21  evening, by this afternoon, and I'll abstain on the

         22  second bill.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         25  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no
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          2  abstentions, with the exception of the HIV bill by a

          3  vote of five in the affirmative, no, zero negatives

          4  and one abstention, the items are adopted. Please

          5  sign the report.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: We will be holding

          7  the hearing open for those Council members that are

          8  at other hearings or went ahead to the Stated.

          9                 Thank you, my colleagues, for being

         10  here so long, and meeting is adjourned -- oh,

         11  recessed.

         12                 (Hearing recessed at 1:10 p.m.)
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